
PUBLIC NOTICE

Chair Appointed Members
ERIC SCHERTZING REBECCA BAHAR-COOK, Treasurer

Vice-Chair DEB NOLAN, Secretary
BRIAN McGRAIN KARA HOPE

Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority
422 Adams Street, Lansing Michigan 48906 517.267.5221 Fax 517.267.5224

THE INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY WILL MEET ON
MONDAY, AUGUST 19, 2013 AT 5:00 P.M., IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD EMPOWERMENT
CENTER BOARD ROOM – 600 W. MAPLE, LANSING, MI.

NOTE CHANGED LOCATION!!
Agenda

Call to Order
Approval of Minutes – July 1, 2013
Additions to the Agenda
Limited Public Comment – 3 minutes per person

1. Community Projects Update

2. Resolution to Extend Purchase Agreement between ICLBA and Gillespie Group for the Property
at 600 E. Michigan Avenue

3. Resolution to approve the Development Agreement and Option to Purchase Agreement between
ICLBA and Kincaid Henry for the Ash Street Redevelopment Project in Mason

4. Resolution to Waive Specific Tax (5/50 tax) on certain vacant lots to allow purchasers to combine
lots

5. Resolution – 2013 ICLBA Budget Amendment

6. Strategic Plan – discussion item

7. ICLBA Public Relations – Update item

8. Property maintenance, renovation & development
a. Residential Property Update-Dashboard
b. Commercial Property Update
c. Vacant Lot Update
d. Garden Program Update – Dashboard
e. Completed and Pending Sales
f. General legal update- Counsel

9. Accounts Payable & Monthly Statement
a. Accounts Payable Approval – July 2013
b. Monthly Statement – June 2013

10. Chairman & Executive Director Comments

Announcements
Public Comment – 3 minutes per person
Adjournment



Page 1 of 4

INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTHORITY

July 1, 2013
Minutes

Members Present: Eric Schertzing, Comm. Bahar-Cook, Comm. McGrain, Comm.
Hope, Comm. Nolan

Members Absent: None

Others Present: Jeff Burdick, Sandy Gower, Melissa Lott

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Schertzing at 5:01 p.m. Conference
Room D & E of the Human Services Building, 5303 S. Cedar, Lansing.

Approval of the June 3, 2013 Minutes

MOVED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK, SUPPORTED BY COMM. HOPE, TO APPROVE
THE JUNE 3, 2013 MINUTES. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

Additions to the Agenda: None

Limited Public Comment: None

1. Community Projects Update

Chairperson Schertzing introduced Melissa Lott to update the board on the Garden
Program. Ms. Lott presented an overview of the information included in the meeting
packet. She also updated the board on a letter of support issued by the Garden
Program on behalf of the Greater Lansing Food Bank Garden Project apprenticeship
program.

2. Review of 2012 Final Ingham County Land Bank Audit Materials from Rehmann

Chairperson Schertzing stated the final 2012 audit was included in the meeting packet.
The auditors reported that no issues had been found. Comm. McGrain inquired about
the increase in the value of the Land Bank’s year-end inventory. Executive Director
Burdick explained the increase primarily reflects the Land Bank’s increased renovation
and new construction activity in 2012. The inventory value includes all of the Land
Bank’s property assets, especially those listed for sale. Comm. McGrain also asked
about re-payment of the Land Bank’s revolving line of credit. Chairperson Schertzing
stated the majority of the Land Bank’s projects have been grant funded, so their sale
proceeds have not been available to pay down the debt. Additionally, he stated that



Page 2 of 4

approximately $1.3 million of the revolving loan debt offset by our land contract
receivable.

MOVED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK, TO
ACCEPT THE 2012 FINAL AUDIT AND PLACE ON FILE. MOTION CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY.

3. Ingham County CDBG Program Restructuring – Discussion Item

Chairperson Schertzing updated the board on the re-structuring of the County CDBG
Program without a permanent staff person. Various parts of the program will be handled
out of the Land Bank, Treasurer’s Office, and Community Development Office while still
providing services to the citizens of Ingham County.

4. ICLBA Public Relations – Review Draft Talking Points

Executive Director Burdick presented the draft talking points included in the meeting
packet. Comm. Bahar-Cook requested that more information regarding the Land Bank’s
out-county projects and commercial projects be incorporated into the talking points.

5. Habitat for Humanity Wayne Street Request – Discussion Item

Chairperson Schertzing updated the board on the request for funding received from
Habitat for Humanity. The board discussed where in the budget such a request might be
funded from. Executive Director Burdick reminded the board the 2013 budget
adjustments would be discussed at the August meeting.

MOVED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK, SUPPORTED BY COMM. NOLAN TO RE-
SCHEDULE THE NEXT BOARD MEETING TO 5:00PM ON AUGUST 19, 2013.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

6. Property Maintenance, Renovation & Development
6a. Residential Property Update – Dashboard

Chairperson Schertzing stated the dashboard was included in the meeting packet. The
Land Bank had its 27th closing of the year earlier today.

6b. Commercial Property Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated the information was included in the dashboard. There
was a meeting today between Lansing City Council members and residents of
Friendship Manor regarding the development of the former Silver Dollar site.
Groundbreaking has been held up while waiting for the Lansing Board of Water and
Light to relocate a power line. Groundbreaking is expected sometime in the first two
weeks of September.



Page 3 of 4

6c. Vacant Lot Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated the information was included in the dashboard.

6d. Garden Program Update – Dashboard

Chairperson Schertzing stated this had been discussed under agenda item 1.

6e. Completed and Pending Sales

Chairperson Schertzing stated we have had several closings in the last month and have
a couple other pending offers.

6f. General Legal Update - Counsel

Chairperson Schertzing stated he had received an email from Counsel stating there
were no legal issues to report.

7. Accounts Payable & Monthly Statement
7a. Accounts Payable Approval – June 2013

MOVED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK, SUPPORTED BY COMM. NOLAN, TO APPROVE
THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FOR JUNE 2013. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

7b. Monthly Statement – May 2013

The May 2013 monthly financial statement was received and placed on file.

8. Chairman and Executive Director Comments

Chairperson Schertzing stated the Bike Share Program had a successful fundraiser at
Clark Hill. The bikes have been ordered and are scheduled for installation on August 4th.
The Treasurer’s tax sale auction is scheduled for 10:00am on July 24th. Executive
Director Burdick updated the board on staff’s efforts to come up with a warranty for
homebuyers.

Comm. Nolan requested that Outcome #5 of the Land Bank’s strategic plan be included
in the August meeting agenda.

Announcements: None

Limited Public Comment: None

The meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m.



Page 4 of 4

Respectfully submitted,
Joseph Bonsall



August 12, 2013

To: Ingham County Land Bank Board Members

From: Jeff Burdick, Executive Director

Subject: Request to extend purchase agreement for 600 E. Michigan Avenue

On August 7, 2012, a purchase agreement was made by and between the Ingham County Land Bank and
Gillespie Development, LLC regarding the vacant commercial property on the southeast corner of
Michigan and Larch Street (600 E. Michigan Avenue). This agreement was for one year, but was
extended by the Board President for two weeks (through August 20, 2013) in order for representatives of
Gillespie Development, LLC to approach the Board to request an additional extension of the agreement.

I have included the following information in the meeting packet for your review to assist in considering
this request from Gillespie Development:

- An email message from Jason Kildea of Gillespie Development to Jeff Burdick and Eric Schertzing
dated July 12, 2013 outlining the reason Gillespie Development is requesting the extension of the
development agreement;

- An Addendum to Buy/Sell Agreement signed by Eric Schertzing and Patrick Gillespie on July 24,
2013.

- The original Buy/Sell Agreement dated August 7, 2012 and signed by Eric Schertzing and Patrick
Gillespie, including a copy of the good faith deposit check received by Gillespie Development in the
amount of $1,000.



INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN TO EXTEND THE BUY/SELL AGREEMENT
TERM FOR A PERIOD OF SIX MONTHS FOR THE PROPERTY AT 600 E. MICHIGAN
AVENUE, LANSING, MICHIGAN, FOR GILLESPIE DEVELOPMENT, LLC

RESOLUTION #13-10

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Fast Track Act, 2003 PA 258, being MCL 124.751 et seq., (Athe
Act@) establishes the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Act allows a foreclosing governmental unit, such as the Ingham County
Treasurer, to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the State Land Bank Fast Track
Authority providing for the exercise of the powers, duties, functions, and responsibilities of an
authority under the Act, and for the creation of a County Land Bank Fast Track Authority (the
“Authority”) to exercise those functions; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Treasurer, with Ingham County Board of Commissioners
approval, has entered into such an intergovernmental agreement under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority received title to the commercial
property located at 600 E. Michigan Avenue, Lansing in July of 2011 through tax foreclosure;
and

WHEREAS, this building is a former contaminated Mobil Gas station located on corner of Larch
and Michigan Avenue in Lansing; and

WHEREAS, the property had an appraised value in 2011 of $60,000, and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority and Gillespie Development,
LLC entered into a buy/sell agreement on August 7, 2012 with a twelve month due diligence
period; and

WHEREAS, due to unforeseen circumstances regarding the rezoning of the subject property, the
seller has granted Gillespie Development, LLC until August 20, 2013, to secure an extension for
its due diligence period from the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority has policies, procedures and
administrative rules regarding the disposition of commercial property and all transfer of non-
residential property must have board approval;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority authorizes the Land Bank Chairman to
authorize an extension of six months (February 20, 2014) to the buy/sell agreement for the
property at 600 E. Michigan Avenue, Lansing for Gillespie Development, LLC.

AYE
NAY
ABSENT: McGrain





























August 12, 2013

To: Ingham County Land Bank Board Members

From: Jeff Burdick, Executive Director

Subject: Development Agreement and Option to Purchase Agreement between the Land Bank and
Kincaid Henry for the Ash Street Redevelopment Project in Mason

On May 2, 2013, the Land Bank received preliminary approval from the Michigan State Housing
Development Authority (MSHDA) for our grant application of $500,000 in Michigan Housing and
Community Development Funds (MHCDF) regarding the Ash Street Mixed-Use Redevelopment Project in
downtown Mason. The Land Bank Board authorized the acceptance of this preliminary grant at their
June 3, 2013 meeting. This resolution would allow the Land Bank to enter into a development agreement
and execute an option to purchase with Kincaid Henry, the developer for the project.

It is important to note that Kincaid Henry will not take official ownership of the property until after the
project is complete. This protects the Land Bank as the recipient of the $500,000 MSHDA grant, should
the project not be completed. In section 3 of the Development Agreement (Economic Incentives) it is
noted that the Land Bank will apply for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) certificate to the
City of Mason, which will freeze the taxable value of the property at approximately $863,000 for a period
of no more than twelve years upon completion of the project. The OPRA is intended to assist an end user
that Kincaid Henry has already identified for the commercial portion of this project.

I have included the following information in the meeting packet for your review to assist in reviewing this
agenda item:

- Mason Adaptive Re-Use elevations and floor plans as prepared by Kincaid Henry ;

- A finance proposal letter addressed to Kincaid Henry from Summit Community Bank;

- A letter from the Mason Downtown Development Authority committing to façade improvement
grants for the project in the amount of $50,000;

- An email from Bruce Johnston (consultant to the City of Mason) to Louis Vinson of MSHDA stating
that Mason has officially applied to MSHDA for rental rehabilitation dollars for this project;

- A spreadsheet dated 8/9/2013 outlining the tax capture of the completed project should an OPRA
be approved.



INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN TO ENTER INTO A DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT AND TO EXECUTE AN OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH
KINCAID HENRY FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 140 E. ASH, 124 E. ASH AND
ALLEY 17, MASON, MICHIGAN FOR THE SUM NOT LESS THAN $150,000.

RESOLUTION #13-11

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Fast Track Act, 2003 PA 258, being MCL 124.751 et seq.,
(Athe Act@) establishes the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Act allows a foreclosing governmental unit, such as the Ingham County
Treasurer, to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the State Land Bank Fast
Track Authority providing for the exercise of the powers, duties, functions, and
responsibilities of an authority under the Act, and for the creation of a County Land Bank
Fast Track Authority (the “Authority”) to exercise those functions; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Treasurer, with Ingham County Board of Commissioners
approval, has entered into such an intergovernmental agreement under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority received title to the
properties located at 124 E. Ash, Mason, consisting of a two story 7,480 sq.ft commercial
building; 140 E. Ash, Mason, consisting of a three story 13,140 sq. ft commercial building;
and Alley 17, Mason, consisting of a storage/garage 1,200 sq.ft commercial building in
July of 2009 through tax foreclosure; and

WHEREAS, these buildings are functionally obsolete and are a focal point in downtown
Mason; and

WHEREAS, the intended redevelopment is mixed-use with ten new residential apartments
and over 5,000 square feet of new first-floor commercial space in the heart of downtown
Mason; and

WHEREAS, the Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) has awarded
the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority a preliminary grant in the amount of
$500,000 to assist in completing the Ash Street Mixed-Use Redevelopment Project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Mason has applied for $350,000 in rental rehab funds from MSHDA
to assist in completing the Ash Street Mixed-Use Redevelopment Project; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority will apply for an Obsolete
Property Rehabilitation Act Certificate (OPRA) to the City of Mason, which will freeze the
existing taxable value of the property at $863,700 after the development is complete for a
period of no more than twelve years to encourage end user investment in the project; and



WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority has policies, procedures
and administrative rules regarding the disposition of commercial property and all transfer
for non-residential property must have board approval;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority authorizes the Land Bank Chairman to
enter into a development agreement and execute an option to purchase agreement with
Kincaid Henry for the properties located at 124 E. Ash, 140 E. Ash and Alley 17, Mason,
Michigan for the sum not less than $150,000.

Aye:
Abstain:
Nay:
Absent: McGrain



1

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made as of this ______day
of ________________, 2013 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Ingham County Land
Bank Fast Track Authority, a Michigan public authority (“Land Bank”), and RKH
Investments, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company (“Developer”) (each a “Party” and
collectively the “Parties”), upon the terms and conditions set forth below.

RECITALS

A. Land Bank is the owner of the real property in the City of Mason, Ingham County,
Michigan described as

Tax ID Property Address Legal Descriptions

33-19-10-09-110-007 140 E. Ash St. W 2/3 OF LOT 3, BLOCK 17, SEC 9 T2N R1W,
CITY OF MASON, INGHAM CO.

33-19-10-09-110-015 Alley 17 N 41 FT OF LOT 9, BLOCK 17, SEC 9 T2N
R1W, CITY OF MASON, INGHAM CO.

33-19-10-09-110-021 124 E. Ash St. E 2/3 OF LOT 2, BLOCK 17, SEC 9 T2N R1W,
CITY OF MASON, INGHAM CO.

(the “Property”), upon which one or more unoccupied structure(s) are located.

B. Contemporaneously with entry into this Agreement, Land Bank and Developer are
entering into an Option to Purchase (the “Option”) under which Developer is purchasing
the Property from the Land Bank.

C. The Land Bank and Developer share the goal of redeveloping the Property in such a
manner as to benefit the City of Mason and its downtown in which the property is located
and support and further the continued economic revitalization of both Mason and its
downtown and the Ingham County region.

D. The Developer intends to redevelop the Property as commercial space and ten rental

apartment units using private funds, bank financing and public funds provided by the

Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSDHA) through the Michigan

Housing and Community Development Fund (MHCDF), the U.S. Department of Housing

and Urban Development Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for rental

rehabilitation, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Part 1 Façade

Job Creation CDBG funds, and a façade improvement grant through the City of Mason’s

Downtown Development Authority.

E. Land Bank and Developer desire to enter into this Agreement to guide the conduct and
actions of Developer with respect to the redevelopment of the Property and the
furtherance of the goal set forth above.



2

TERMS

WHEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement and
in the Option, the parties agree as follows:

1. Redevelopment Property. Developer shall redevelop the Property in accordance with the
following:

a. Use. The Property shall be redeveloped into a mixed use property (commercial
and residential) in accordance with applicable zoning regulations; provided,
however, that the Property shall not be redeveloped for uses prohibited by local
regulations or by conditions placed on zoning approval. The Developer shall
renovate the first floor of the Property as office and/or commercial space. The
second and third floors shall be renovated as ten residential rental apartment units.
Upon completion of construction or rehabilitation in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, 51% of the residential units shall be rented to
income eligible households earning 80% or less of area median income (AMI).
Required standards for construction and rehabilitation are further referenced in
this Agreement and the plans and specifications.

b. Preliminary Plans and Drawings. Attached hereto as Exhibit A are preliminary
architectural plans and drawings for the redevelopment of the Property prepared
by or on behalf of Developer. Developer intends to redevelop the Property in a
manner largely consistent with the attached plans and drawings; provided,
however, that Developer shall have authority to modify the plans and drawings as
Developer chooses in order to redevelop the Property in a commercially
reasonable manner and to respond to the needs and desires of prospective tenants
of the Property, so long as the use of the Property is consistent with Section 1.a
above. Substantial deviations in the plans and drawings shall be submitted to the
Land Bank for approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned
or delayed.

c. Energy Efficiency. Developer shall utilize commercially reasonable efforts to
redevelop the Property in a manner that respects and promotes energy efficiency.

d. Timeframe. Developer shall apply for a building permit for the construction of
the improvements by _____________, and shall commence construction within
thirty (30) days after obtaining the building permit. Once construction
commences, Developer shall diligently prosecute the construction to completion.
Developer shall utilize its best efforts to obtain a certificate of occupancy for the
primary project on the Property within twelve (12) months of the date of this
Agreement. Copies of building permits and certificates of occupancy shall be
promptly delivered to the Land Bank when obtained.

e. Construction of Improvements. The construction of improvements and related
activities in connection with the redevelopment of the Property shall be performed



3

in accordance with the approved drawings and plans by duly licensed contractors
and in accordance with applicable building codes and related laws and
regulations. Developer shall be responsible for obtaining all building, electrical,
plumbing, and similar permits necessary for the construction of improvements in
connection with the redevelopment of the Property.

f. Progress Reports. Developer shall make reports in such detail and at such times
as may reasonably be requested by the Land Bank as to the progress of
construction, but in no event shall the reports be required to be made more
frequently than monthly, nor shall any report be due less than thirty (30) days
following the Land Bank’s request for the report.

g. Access to Development Site. Until the completion of construction, Developer shall
permit representatives of the Land Bank access to the project at all times
determined necessary by the Land Bank during normal business hours and upon
prior notice for the purposes of this Agreement, including, but not limited to,
viewing all work being performed in connection with the construction of the
Project. The Land Bank shall provide the Developer a 24-hour notice when
requesting access to the project.

2. Reimbursement of Certain Costs. Provided that the redevelopment of the Property is
proceeding in accordance with Section 1 above, Land Bank shall directly reimburse
Developer for all costs incurred by Developer in coordination with the Michigan Housing
and Community Development Fund Grant secured through MSHDA. The total amount
of reimbursement under this Section shall not exceed Five Hundred Thousand Dollars
($500,000). Developer shall submit such costs as they are incurred, along with such
other documentation as may reasonably be required by Land Bank, and Land Bank shall
reimburse Developer for such costs (strictly in accordance with the foregoing) within
fifteen (15) days of receipt of such documentation.

3. Economic Incentives. Land Bank and Developer shall cooperate with and reasonably
support and assist each other in connection with the pursuit of and application for tax
abatements and other economic incentives which may be available from or through the
United States of America, State of Michigan, or City of Mason in connection with the
redevelopment of the Property. This includes the pursuit of an Obsolete Property
Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) certificate from the City of Mason to freeze the taxable value
upon completion of the project at a certain point below the completed project’s assessed
value for a period of no more than twelve years.

4. Developer Qualifications. Developer represents that it is purchasing the Property for the
purpose of redevelopment as stated in this Agreement and not for speculation. Developer
acknowledges that the project is important to the general welfare of the greater Ingham
County community, and the success of the project will in great part depend on the
authority and qualifications of the managers of Developer. Developer represents and
warrants that at the time of execution of this Agreement Ryan Kincaid and Ryan Henry
are the owners and managers of Developer. Developer represents and warrants to the
Land Bank that the operating agreement provided to the Land Bank prior to the execution



4

of this Agreement is the sole agreement of the members, and is in full force and effect as
of the Effective Date. In the event the operating agreement is proposed to be amended
after the Effective Date and prior to completion of construction, Developer shall deliver
to the Land Bank written notice of the proposed amendment and a copy of the proposed
amendment. Developer acknowledges that the persons having the management authority
within Developer and that person’s qualifications are of particular concern to the Land
Bank. Developer further acknowledges that it is, in part, because of the qualifications of
these individuals that the Land Bank is entering into this Agreement, and in so doing, is
further willing to accept and rely on the obligations of Developer for the faithful
performance of all of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement. Developer agrees
that Ryan Kincaid and Ryan Henry will retain all management authority of Developer
until such time as Developer gives written notice to the Land Bank that another
manager(s) has been named, and the Land Bank has given its written approval of the
manager, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. The notice
shall specify the qualifications of the manager to undertake and complete the obligations
on behalf of Developer under this Agreement. The Land Bank will be deemed to have
approved the new manager named by Developer unless written notice of disapproval is
given within ten (10) business days after receipt of Developer’s notice. In the event of
the Land Bank’s disapproval, Developer shall notify the Land Bank within ten (10)
business days of another manager. This process shall continue until a manager is
approved by the Land Bank. Prior to approval by the Land Bank, management of
Developer shall remain vested solely in Ryan Kincaid and Ryan Henry. The preceding
provisions shall apply to any successor manager appointed by Developer. Developer’s
obligation under this Section shall cease upon completion of construction. Nothing in
this Section 4 shall be construed to impose liability on the Land Bank for any act or
failure to act by any manager of Developer, or constitute a waiver of the rights of the
Land Bank to claim default under this Agreement for the act or failure to act of
Developer or any manager of Developer.

5. Default and Remedies. The Land Bank shall have the right to terminate this Agreement
upon written notice if any of the following occur prior to completion of construction:

a. Any change in the management of Developer which the Land Bank does not
approve;

b. Any material adverse change in the financial condition of Developer; and,

c. Developer’s failure to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement or the
Option which it is required to perform and failure of Developer to cure the default
within thirty (30) days after notice, unless the cure would reasonably take longer
than thirty (30) days, then within such longer period. Upon termination,
Developer will release its interest in the Property by assignment of the vendee’s
interest in the Option to the Land Bank, warranting Developer’s vendee’s interest
against all claims and interests other than those liens and encumbrances which are
in existence on the Effective Date. The assignment shall be delivered to the Land
Bank within ten (10) business days after termination. The obligation of Developer
to assign is enforceable in an action for specific performance. All monies paid by



5

Developer on the Option shall be retained by the Land Bank, but shall not
constitute liquidated damages relating to claims of the Land Bank against
Developer for breach of this Agreement or the Option.

6. Other Remedies. The termination remedy in Section 5 is not an exclusive remedy.
Therefore, in the event of default by Developer under this Agreement or the Option, the
Land Bank may pursue any remedy available to it at law or equity.

7. Inclusion of Small Businesses. It is anticipated that the Developer/Contractor will seek
bids from and use where possible as subcontractors small businesses, including but not
limited to, micro local business enterprises (Micro-LBE), veteran owned small businesses
(VOSB), minority business enterprises (MBE), and women-owned business enterprises
(WBE.)

8. Section 3. The Developer/Contractor agrees to comply with applicable requirements of
Section 3 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1968, as amended and
implemented in 24 CFR Part 135. All subcontractors interested in submitting bids for
contracts shall be informed of Section 3 requirements and goals.

9. Procurement Processes. The Developer/Contractor, unless also the general contractor,
shall comply with the procurement processes detailed in the CD Bidding and Contractor
Selection Practices document with regard to the procurement of professional services,
bidding of construction work, submission of information on selected contractors, CD
review of construction costs, and execution of construction contracts. These processes are
detailed in CD bidding and contractor selection practices. The Developer/Contractor will
be notified when this document is revised.

10. Environmental Requirements. The Developer/Contractor shall comply with all
environmental related requirements the Owner determines necessary to comply with
provisions of 24 CFR Part 58.

11. Lien Waivers. The Developer/Contractor shall obtain lien waivers from all parties
providing labor, materials or equipment for construction or rehabilitation of the Property.
The lien waivers shall be maintained by the Developer/Contractor in accordance with the
General Terms and Conditions and any revisions thereto, and shall be made available to
the Owner upon request. The Developer/Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner in
writing if a Claim of Lien is filed by any party that has provided labor, materials or
equipment for the construction or rehabilitation of the Property. The notification shall
include the name of the party filing the claim, the amount of the claim, a description of the
circumstances surrounding the filing of the claim and actions taken and/or planned by the
Developer/Contractor to resolve the situation.

12. Completion of Work. The Developer/Contractor shall complete construction or
rehabilitation of the Property to standards set forth in this Agreement not later than
___________. The Developer/Contractor shall be responsible for providing the Owner
with written notification that work on the Property has been completed.



6

13. Miscellaneous.

a. Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete agreement among
the parties and supersedes and replaces all prior negotiations and agreements, other
than the Option. There are no representations, warranties, covenants, conditions,
terms, agreements, promises, understandings, commitments or other arrangements
whether express or implied other than those expressly set forth or incorporated
herein or made in writing on or after the date of this Agreement.

b. Governing Law; Forum. This Agreement will be governed by, and construed in
accordance with, the laws of the State of Michigan applicable to contracts made
and to be performed entirely within such State and without giving effect to choice
of law principles of such State. Each of the Parties agrees that any legal or
equitable action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement or entered into in
connection with this Agreement or transactions contemplated by this Agreement
shall be brought only in a state or federal court located in or having jurisdiction
over Ingham County, Michigan.

c. Relationship of Parties. The relationship between Land Bank and Developer shall
be that of independent contracting parties, and not partners in an actual or implied
partnership nor joint venturers. The rights and obligations of the Parties shall be
governed solely by this Agreement and the Option. Each party shall determine its
own methods and manner for performing its obligations under this Agreement.

d. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
Parties to this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed
to give any person, partnership, joint venture, corporation, limited liability
Corporation, governmental authority or other entity any right to enforce any of the
provisions of this Agreement, nor shall any of them be a third party beneficiary of
this Agreement.

e. No Waiver. The failure of any Party to exercise or enforce any right or remedy
conferred upon it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any such or
other right or remedy nor operate to bar the exercise or enforcement of any thereof
at any time thereafter.

f. No Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights or obligations
hereunder may be assigned by either Party hereto without the express written
consent of both Parties.

g. Binding Nature. This Agreement and the rights and obligations hereunder are
binding on the Parties and their successors and permitted assigns.

h. Counterparts and Facsimiles. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. Facsimiles (including electronic versions)
of original signatures and facsimiles of this Agreement shall constitute originals



7

for all purposes. Time is of the essence in the performance of every covenant,
term, condition and provision of this Agreement.

i. Notices and Demands. Any notice, demand or other communication under this
Agreement by one party to the other shall be made in writing and is sufficient if
made by any of the following means: (i) hand delivery, or (ii) Federal Express,
UPS, or like overnight courier service. Notice made in accordance with this
Section will be deemed given and/or delivered on receipt if by hand, or on the next
business day after deposit with an overnight courier service if made by overnight
courier. The notice information for each party is stated below. The notice
information for a party may be changed by the party from time to time, by
providing notice to the other party in the manner provided in this Section.

In the case of Developer, to:
Ryan Kincaid
934 Clark St.
Lansing, MI 48906

In the case of the Land Bank, to:
Jeff Burdick
422 Adams St.
Lansing, MI 48906

j. Photographic Record. The Developer/Contractor shall maintain a photo inventory
of the construction or rehabilitation of the Property, including before, during, and
after photographs.

k. Notice of Problems, Delays, Adverse Conditions. The Developer/Contractor shall
inform the Land Bank as soon as any problems, delays, or adverse conditions that
materially affect the ability of the Developer/Contractor to complete any herein
described activity, or prevent the meeting of time schedules become known. A
statement of the action taken, or contemplated, by the Developer/Contractor to
resolve the situation shall accompany this disclosure.

l. Failure to Complete Construction and/or Rental. In the event the Developer fails
to complete construction or rehabilitation in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, the Land Bank shall have all remedies at law or
equity for breach.

m. Severability. If any provision or provisions set forth in this Agreement is in
conflict with any Michigan law or is otherwise unenforceable, that provision is
void to the extent of the conflict or unenforceability and is severable from and does
not invalidate any other provision of this Agreement.

n. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only
and shall not affect the meaning of this Agreement.



8

WHEREFORE, the Parties have duly executed this Agreement effective as of the day and
year first above written.

INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTHORITY

Name: Eric Schertzing

Title: Chairperson

RKH INVESTMENTS, LLC

Name: Ryan J. Kincaid

Title: Member



1

INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK

OPTION AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY

THIS OPTION AGREEMENT ("Agreement") made and entered into this ____ day of _________, 20___, by and
between the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority, whose principal address is 422 Adams Street,
Lansing, Michigan 48906, hereinafter referred to as "Seller" and RKH Investments, LLC, whose principal address
is 934 Clark St., Lansing, MI 48906 , hereinafter referred to as "Purchaser":

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, Seller is the fee simple owner of certain real property being, lying and situated in the City of Mason,
County of Ingham, State of Michigan, such real property having the street address of 140 East Ash Street, 124 East
Ash Street, and Alley 17 ("Premises") and such property being more particularly described as follows:

W 2/3 of Lot 3, Block 17, Section 9 T2N R1W, City of Mason, Ingham County

N 41 feet of Lot 9, Block 17, Section 9 T2N R1W, City of Mason, Ingham County

E 2/3 of Lot 2, Block 17, Section 9 T2N R1W, City of Mason, Ingham County

and,

WHEREAS, Purchaser desires to enter into an option to purchase the Premises upon the terms and provisions as
hereinafter set forth;

WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser intend that the subject premises shall be used to develop commercial space and
ten rental apartment units using funds provided by the Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSDHA)
through the Michigan Housing and Community Development Fund (MHCDF), the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for rental rehabilitation;, and the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Part 1 Façade Job Creation CDBG funds, and a façade
improvement grant through the City of Mason’s Downtown Development Authority.

WHEREAS, Seller or City of Mason (City) and Purchaser have entered into a Development Agreement wherein
Purchaser is acting as developer for the subject premises and which Development Agreement dated ________ is
hereby incorporated by reference;

WHEREAS, Purchaser and Seller intend that this Option Agreement shall provide land control for the Purchaser
while Purchaser is acting as developer under the aforementioned Development Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged by the parties hereto and for the mutual covenants contained herein, Seller and Purchaser hereby
agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(a) "Execution Date" shall mean the day upon which the last party to this Agreement shall duly execute this
Agreement;



2

(b) "Option Fee" shall mean the total sum of a down payment of $15,000.00 toward the total purchase price of the
Premises payable as set forth below;

(c) "Option Term" shall mean that period of time commencing on ______________ and ending no later than twelve
months after the MSHDA MHCD fund award;

(d) "Option Exercise Date" shall mean that date at the end of the Option Term, by which the Purchaser shall send its
written notice to Seller exercising its Option to Purchase;

(e) "Closing Date" shall mean the last day of the Option Term or such other date during the Option Term selected by
Seller.

2. GRANT OF OPTION. For and in consideration of the Option Fee payable to Seller as set forth herein, Seller does
hereby grant to Purchaser the exclusive right and Option ("Option") to purchase the premises upon the terms and
conditions as set forth herein.

(a) Unoccupied Property. Seller warrants that premises are unoccupied as of the Option Exercise Date and have
been continuously unoccupied for at least 120 days prior to the Option Exercise Date.

3. PAYMENT OF OPTION FEE. Purchaser agrees to pay the Seller a down payment of ten percent of the total
purchase price of the Premises as the Option Fee.

4. EXERCISE OF OPTION. Purchaser shall exercise its exclusive right to purchase the Premises pursuant to the
Option, at the end of the Option Term, by giving written notice thereof to Seller. As provided for above, the date of
sending of said notice shall be the Option Exercise Date. In the event the Purchaser does not exercise its exclusive
right to purchase the Premises granted by the Option during the Option Term, the (a) this Agreement shall become
absolutely null and void, (b) neither party hereto shall have any other liability, obligation or duty herein under or
pursuant to this Agreement, and (c) Seller shall retain the Option Fee.

5. CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE & SALE OF REAL PROPERTY. In the event that the Purchaser exercises its
exclusive Option as provided for in the preceding paragraph, Seller agrees to sell and Purchaser agrees to buy the
Premises and both parties agree to execute a contract for such purchase and sale of the Premises in accordance with
the following terms and conditions:

(a) Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Premises shall be the sum of $150,000.00, which may be financed in
whole or in part through purchaser’s assumption of existing mortgages, liens or indebtedness; however, Purchaser
shall receive a credit toward such purchase price in the amount of the Option Fee;

(b) Closing Date. The closing date shall be on August 31, 2014 or at any other date during the Option Term as may
be selected by Seller;

(c) Closing Costs. Costs of closing the property sale transaction shall be borne by Purchaser and shall be paid at
closing;

(d) Default by Purchaser; Remedies of Seller. In the event Purchaser, after exercise of the Option, fails to proceed
with the closing of the purchase of the Premises pursuant to the terms and provisions as contained herein and/or
under the Contract, Seller shall be entitled to retain the Premises and the Option Fee, and shall have no further
recourse against Purchaser;

(e) Default by Seller; Remedies of Purchaser. In the event Seller fails to close the sale of the Premises pursuant to
the terms and provisions of this Agreement and/or under the Contract, Purchaser shall be entitled to either sue for
specific performance of the real estate purchase and sale contract or terminate such Contract and sue for money
damages;



3

(f) Assignment of Option. Purchaser may not assign this option to another party without Seller’s prior written
approval.

(g) Title Insurance. If closing occurs, Seller will provide a commitment for ALTA Home Owner’s Policy of Title
Insurance in an amount not less than the purchase price without expense to the Purchaser unless otherwise agreed.

6. MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) Execution by Both Parties. This Agreement shall not become effective and binding until fully executed by both
Purchaser and Seller.

(b) Notice. All notices, demands and/or consents provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
delivered to the parties hereto by hand or by United States Mail with postage pre-paid. Such notices shall be deemed
to have been served on the date mailed, postage pre-paid. All such notices and communications shall be addressed to
the Seller at 422 Adams Street, Lansing, MI 48906 and to Purchaser at 934 Clark Street, Lansing, MI 48906 or at
such other address as either may specify to the other in writing.

(c) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Michigan.

(d) Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall apply to, inure to the benefit of and be binding upon and
enforceable against the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, and or assigns, to the extent as if
specified at length throughout this Agreement.

(e) Time. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

(f) Headings. The headings inserted at the beginning of each paragraph and/or subparagraph are for convenience of
reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect or be used in the construction of any terms or provisions
hereof.

(g) Cost of this Agreement. Any cost and/or fees incurred by the Purchaser or Seller in executing this Agreement
shall be borne by the respective party incurring such cost and/or fee.

(h) Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains all of the terms, promises, covenants, conditions and representations
made or entered into by or between Seller and Purchaser with respect to the Option. This Agreement may not be
modified or amended unless such amendment is set forth in writing and executed by both Seller and Purchaser with
the formalities hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed under proper authority:

As to Purchaser this _____ day of _____________, 2013.

Witnesses: "Purchaser"

___________________________ ___________________________

___________________________ Ryan Kincaid, Member

RKH Investments, LLC



4

As to Seller this ____ day of ______________, 2013.

Witnesses: "Seller"

__________________________ __________________________

__________________________ Eric Schertzing, Chairperson

Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority











































INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A POLICY THAT WOULD ALLOW STAFF TO USE ITS
DISCRETION IN WAIVING THE SPECIFIC TAX (5/50 TAX) FOR CERTAIN INGHAM
COUNTY LAND BANK PROPERTIES THAT ARE SOLD AS SIDE LOTS

RESOLUTION #13-12

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Fast Track Act, 2003 PA 258, being MCL 124.751 et seq.,
(Athe Act@) establishes the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Act allows a foreclosing governmental unit, such as the Ingham County
Treasurer, to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the State Land Bank Fast
Track Authority providing for the exercise of the powers, duties, functions, and
responsibilities of an authority under the Act, and for the creation of a County Land Bank
Fast Track Authority (the “Authority”) to exercise those functions; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Treasurer, with Ingham County Board of Commissioners
approval, has entered into such an intergovernmental agreement under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the State of Michigan’s 96th Legislature passed House Bill No. 5646 in 2012,
which is an amendment to Public Act 260 of 2003; and

WHEREAS, House Bill No. 5646 allows Land Bank Authorities to exempt eligible tax
reverted property from the eligible tax reverted property specific tax if the exception will
assist in the creation of jobs, investment, or other economic development benefits in the
city, village, or township in which the eligible tax reverted property is located; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank, as of June 30, 2013, owns 453 vacant parcels
of land; and

WHEREAS, some of these 453 vacant parcels are not marketable to adjacent property
owners due to the fact that these parcels cannot be combined with the adjacent property
owner’s existing property due to administrative complications related to the specific tax
collection;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority approves the proposed policy to allow
Ingham County Land Bank staff to use discretion in waiving the specific tax for certain Land
Bank properties that are sold as side lots (exhibit 1).

Aye:
Abstain:
Nay:
Absent: McGrain



Exhibit 1

Ingham County Land Bank

Waiving of Specific Tax Policy for Certain Land Bank Properties
August 19, 2013

Purpose
Waiving the specific tax collection (5/50 tax) on certain vacant properties that the Land
Bank sells to adjacent property owners will allow these property owners to consolidate
the vacant property with their existing property, so to construct accessory structures on
the vacant land (i.e. garage, gazebo, in-ground pool, shed). The zoning laws of most
municipalities do not allow the placement of accessory structures on property that does
not already include a principal structure (house).

Background
The specific tax (5/50 tax) allows Land Banks to collect 50% of the property taxes on
properties its sells for a period of 5 years. This is an especially valuable revenue-
generating tool for Land Banks. However, for practical purposes, it precludes side lot
purchasers from consolidating their existing property with the newly purchased side lot,
as it creates tax collection administration difficulties.

Over a period of five years, the Land Bank will capture an average of $161.90 per
vacant property sold through the specific tax. If this property were not to sell, the Land
Bank would incur $1,875 in property maintenance costs over this five year period.
These figures were determined by obtaining the average price that the Land Bank sells
vacant lots ($2,455) and using Lansing’s 2012 millage rate of 52.756. Lawn and snow
maintenance costs for vacant lots average $375 per lot per year. After five years, this
equals the $1,875 figure referenced above.

Based on these numbers, it is in the Land Bank’s best interest to waive the specific tax
on the sale of a vacant lot if that lot would not be marketable to an adjacent residential
property owner because of the lot consolidation restrictions posed by the specific tax.

Policy Criteria
Waiving the specific tax shall be done at the discretion of staff only if the property
meets the following criteria:

- The property is residential and a vacant lot
- The potential purchaser of the vacant lot is purchasing the property as a side lot
- The potential purchaser will not purchase the lot unless he/she is allowed to

consolidate the lot with his/her property.







August 12, 2013

To: Ingham County Land Bank Board Members

From: Jeff Burdick, Executive Director

Subject: 2013 Ingham County Land Bank Budget Amendment

The Ingham County Land Bank 2013 amended budget worksheet is included in your meeting packet.
This worksheet includes the original amount budgeted for each revenue, non-administrative and
administrative budget item, the actual balance of each item as of June 30, 2013, and the percentage
earned or expended of each item. To the right of the shaded column, I’ve included the recommended
amended amount for each item and the net change between the original budgeted amount and the
amended amount.

The net revenue/expense decreased from $176,800 in the original approved budget to $101,110 in the
amended budget. This is largely due to the fact that the Land Bank will likely not close on any
commercial sales during 2013. It was originally projected that the Land Bank would earn $209,000 in
commercial sales revenue in 2013. Another factor in the decrease in net revenue/expense is the increase
in the payroll administrative expense amount from the originally budget amount of $441,000 to
$500,000.







INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE 2013 BUDGET OF THE INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION #13-13

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Fast Track Act, 2003 PA 258, being MCL 124.751 et seq.,
(Athe Act@) establishes the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Act allows a foreclosing governmental unit, such as the Ingham County
Treasurer, to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the State Land Bank Fast
Track Authority providing for the exercise of the powers, duties, functions, and
responsibilities of an authority under the Act, and for the creation of a County Land Bank
Fast Track Authority (the “Authority”) to exercise those functions; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Treasurer, with Ingham County Board of Commissioners
approval, has entered into such an intergovernmental agreement under the Act; and

WHEREAS, from time to time a need exists to amend an adopted budget, as is true for the
2013 budget; and

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority approves the mid-year revenue
reduction of $1,149,000 and expense reduction of $1,073,310 for a net 2013 budget
reduction of $75,690 per the attached proposed amended budget.

Aye:
Abstain:
Nay:
Absent: McGrain



Communications Update
August 2013

Notable Projects:

 The Ingham County Land Bank and Land Policy Institute at Michigan State University are
releasing an economic study titled, “The Economic Impact of the Ingham County Land Bank,” on
Thursday, August 22 from 8 to 9:30 a.m. at 1226 W. Lenawee in Lansing (a Land Bank home). All
board members are invited to attend. If planning to attend, please register at
https://inghamlandbankimpactstudy.eventbrite.com/.

 Capital Community Bike Share: The program officially launched on August 4. See media clips for
coverage of the program and its launch.

 Ingham County Treasurer’s Auction: The first Treasurer’s Auction was held July 24 at the Lansing
Center. There were also two on-site auctions, including one for the Ingham County Land Bank
owned “Waverly Hills” home, a 2,600+ square foot waterfront home on the Grand River. The
Waverly Hills home sold for $310,000. The next Treasurer’s Auction will be August 24. A full list
of auction properties and other details are available at www.bippususa.com.

Social Media:

 Current Facebook Fans: 951 Likes (up from 942)

 Current Twitter Followers: 608 (up from 589)

 Content is shared daily on both channels.

 Home listings are shared at least once a week.

 The highest engagement this past month was on the auction information, Step Forward
program, Garden Program coverage in City Pulse and home listings.

Media Relations:

 Press releases were distributed promoting the auction, Home Buyer’s Club (attached) and CCBS
roll-out.

Clips:
July Issue Greater Lansing Business Monthly

Notable News- Ingham County Treasurer and Chairman of Ingham County Land Bank
Receives Honors

Notable News- Ingham County Land Bank Hired New Executive Director



The Ingham County Land Bank and Great Lakes Capital Fund Partner to Repurpose the
former Michigan School for the Blind Campus

7/3/13 City Pulse
Gushing over Reutter Park
http://www.lansingcitypulse.com/lansing/article-9045-gushing-over-reutter.html

7/26/13 MLive
Annual Ingham County tax-foreclosed auction set to be biggest yet
http://www.mlive.com/news/index.ssf/2011/07/lsj_annual_ingham_county_tax-f.html

7/31/13 FOX 47 News
Capital Area's First Bike Share Program Starts Sunday
http://www.fox47news.com/news/local/Capital-Areas-First-Bike-Share-Program-Starts-
Sunday-217796131.html

City Pulse
Bike share rolls out
http://www.lansingcitypulse.com/lansing/article-9130-bike-share-rolls-out.html

8/4/13 Lansing State Journal
New Lansing bike share program nearly ready to roll
http://www.lansingstatejournal.com/proart/20130804/news01/308040080/new-
lansing-bike-share-program-nearly-ready-roll?pagerestricted=1

WLNS
Bike-Share Comes to Lansing
http://www.wlns.com/story/23042607/bike-share-comes-to-lansing

Upcoming Events:
The Economic Impact of the Ingham County Land Bank: An Economic Study
August 22, 2013
1226 W. Lenawee, Lansing
8 to 9:30 a.m.

Ingham County Treasurer’s Auction
Lansing Center, 333 E. Michigan Avenue Suite 201, Lansing
August 24, 2013
9 a.m. Registration
10 a.m. Auction

Home Buyer’s Club Kick Off Event
September 14, 2013
TIME TBD
2202 Midwood Ave., Lansing



Inventory Previous Month Acquired Rental or Garden Demolished Sold Current Inventory

as of 12/31/2012 as of 5/31/2013 as of 6/30/2013 as of 6/30/2013 as of 6/30/2013 as of 6/30/2013 as of 6/30/2013

Structures 354 332 1 0 (3) (25) 327
Rentals 29 29 0 0 0 0 29
Gardens 70 87 0 17 0 0 87
Vacant Land 477 457 1 (17) 3 (5) 459
Commercial Rental 0 1 0 1 0 0 1
Commercial Vacant 5 6 0 0 1 0 6
Commercial 6 4 0 (1) (1) 0 4

TOTAL(S) 941 916 2 0 0 (30) 913

Current L/C
as of 6/30/2013

Land Contracts (L/C) 35

Total Line of Credit $5,000,000.00
Obligated 3,675,000.00
Available Balance 1,325,000.00

INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK

ACTIVITY REPORT

June 30, 2013

Approved Line of Credit

as of 6/30/2013

(DASHBOARD)



Participating ICLB 2010 Gardens 13

Participating ICLB 2011 Gardens 14

Participating ICLB 2012 Gardens 23

Participating ICLB 2013 Gardens 16

Totals

Total Gardens 66

Total Parcels 103

GLFB GP Affiliated Gardens 16

Vacant/Possible Garden Space 350

People Served 865 People

7/29/2013 ICLB Garden Program Dashboard



Address LISA? Program Agent Price Accepted Offer Closed Date
800 Clark NSP-1 Mitch C. $86,500 $86,500 8/14 @ 3PM

1216 W Ottawa NSP-1 Mitch $95,000 $95,000

1035 Queen NSP-1 Joe C. $67,000

1119 McCullough LISA NSP-1 CK $93,000

1738 Maisonette EdenGlen CK

1751 Maisonette EdenGlen CK

842 Edison LB CK $50,000

3325 W Holmes LB CK $95,000

4133 Wainwright LB CK $75,000

6042 Valencia LB CK $70,000

807 Clayton LB CK $48,500 $47,000

218 Redner LB CK $80,000 $80,000

636 Irvington HOME CK $61,000 $61,000

908 Irvington HOME CK $53,500

936 W Miller HOME Joe C $65,000

4018 Hillborn HOME CK $75,000

2219 Newark HOME CK $72,000 NOT FOR SALE

1409 W Mt Hope HOME CK $64,000

2110 Beal HOME CK $60,000

1422 Roselawn HOME Lau $68,500 $68,500

3618 Coachlight HOME CK $66,500

922 Baker PROP CK $13,000 NOT FOR SALE DEMO

1607 Coleman PROP CK $10,500

400 S Fairview PROP CK $17,000

2216 Forest PROP CK $16,500

136 S Magnolia PROP CK $16,900 SOLD SOLD

2509 S MLK PROP CK $20,000

1845 Osband PROP CK $12,000

6240 Shreve PROP CK $10,000

1706 Elizabeth CK $46,000

1122 W Allegan LISA NSP-2 BH $77,500

1216 Allegan NSP-2 Lau $105,000 $105,000

1230 W Allegan LISA NSP-2 BH $100,000

1225 Allen LISA NSP-2 Joe C. $65,000

1715 Bailey LISA NSP-2 Mitch $68,500

628 Brook LISA NSP-2 Lau $87,000 $87,000

1142 Camp LISA NSP-2 Lau $58,000

734 Cawood LISA NSP-2 Lau $47,800

837 Cawood NSP-2 BH $96,000 $96,000

1616 Coleman LISA NSP-2 Lau $69,000

Ingham County Land Bank

FOR SALE PROPERTIES



916 W Genesee LISA NSP-2 BH $77,000

1116 S. Holmes NSP-2 Joe C. $90,000

Address LISA? Program Agent Price Accepted Offer Closed Date
1605 Illinois LISA NSP-2 Mitch $76,900

326 Isbell NSP-2 Mitch $72,800

1427 N Jenison NSP-2 Joe C. $107,000

806 Larned LISA NSP-2 Pyle $75,000

1226 W Lenawee NSP-2 Joe C $107,000

1317 W Lenawee NSP-2 BH $113,900 $113,900

608 Leslie NSP-2 Joe C. $73,000

1139 W Maple LISA NSP-2 Joe C. $72,000

1200 W Maple NSP-2 Joe C. $82,000 $82,000

925 May NSP-2 Mitch $97,500 $97,500

548 Norman LISA NSP-2 Pyle $80,000

1617 Ohio LISA NSP-2 BH $52,000

728 Princeton LISA NSP-2 CK $85,000 $85,000

737 Princeton NSP-2 Pyle $97,000

916 Prospect LISA NSP-2 CK $90,000

209 Reo Ave. LISA NSP-2 BH $79,000

1003 Shepard NSP-2 Lau $96,000

1241 Shepard LISA NSP-2 CK $84,000 DO NOT SHOW DO NOT SHOW

1806 Vermont LISA NSP-2 BH $59,000

920 W Willow LISA NSP-2 Pyle $75,000 $75,000

1616 William LISA NSP-2 Joe C. $70,000

1126 W Kalamazoo NSP-2 Lau $113,700 $113,700

815 Riverview LISA NSP-2 Pyle $63,500

1710 Glenrose Ave. LISA NSP-2 Joe C. $50,000

1312 W. Ottawa NSP-2 CK $110,000 $110,000

731 Comfort LISA NSP-2 CK $53,000

737 Comfort LISA NSP-2 CK $51,000

3814 Coachlight NSP-3 CK $75,700 $75,700

3615 Brighton NSP-3 CK $65,000 $65,000 8/23/2013

730 Chicago NSP-3 CK $85,000

3500 Ronald NSP-3 CK $75,000 $75,000

2036 Reo Rd. NSP-3 CK $85,000 $85,000

2202 Midwood NSP-3 CK $111,900

Last Edited: 8/14/13



CHECK REGISTER FOR INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK 1/2Page: 08/14/2013 02:15 PM
User: JEFF
DB: Iclb

CHECK DATE FROM 07/01/2013 - 07/31/2013

AmountVendor NameCheckCheck Date

Bank GEN 

636.88 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT959407/10/2013
944.05 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT959507/10/2013
771.76 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT959607/10/2013

2,100.00 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT959707/10/2013
185.74 CONSUMERS ENERGY959807/10/2013
210.74 CONSUMERS ENERGY959907/10/2013
232.49 CONSUMERS ENERGY960007/10/2013
213.80 CONSUMERS ENERGY960107/10/2013
142.14 CONSUMERS ENERGY960207/10/2013

1,800.00 CONSUMERS ENERGY960307/10/2013
1,045.11 CITY OF LESLIE960407/10/2013

14.30 DELHI TOWNSHIP960507/10/2013
42.49 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LANSING960607/10/2013
93.56 GRANGER CONTAINER SERVICE960707/10/2013
200.00 THE JOB SHOP INK, INC.960807/10/2013

67,805.67 MICH STATE HOUSING DEV AUTHORITY960907/10/2013
65,347.57 MICH STATE HOUSING DEV AUTHORITY961007/10/2013

400.00 RUFUS JACKSON961107/10/2013
141.09 H.C. BERGER COMPANY961207/10/2013
201.94 HASSELBRING CLARK CO961307/10/2013
324.39 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS961407/10/2013
240.00 PAM BLAIR961507/10/2013
125.00 KUNTZSCH BUSINESS SERVICES INC961607/10/2013
90.00 LANDLORDS OF MID-MICHIGAN961707/10/2013

2,430.00 THE THINK SHOP ARCHITECTS961807/10/2013
61.82 BESCO WATER TREATMENT, INC.961907/10/2013
130.00 AMERICAN RENTALS INC.962007/10/2013
800.00 KEBS, INC.962107/10/2013
68.00 MARK'S LOCK SHOP INC962207/10/2013

1,377.00 FLOORING AMERICA CARPET STUDIO962307/10/2013
3,410.00 DISCOUNT ONE HOUR SIGNS, INC962407/10/2013
3,125.00 J & M HAULING962507/10/2013
1,241.00 MICHIGAN PLUMBING962607/10/2013

120.00 SCHAFER'S INC962707/10/2013
1,621.30 BWB CLEANING962807/10/2013
1,521.40 COMMERCIAL CLEANING962907/10/2013

435.00 WES STEFFEN PLUMBING963007/10/2013
24,210.00 BOB STAPLETON CONSTRUCTION LLC963107/10/2013
10,706.25 CENTURY CONSTRUCTION963207/10/2013
10,451.54 INGHAM COUNTY TREASURER963307/10/2013
8,610.00 ZERO DAY963407/10/2013
1,630.00 AMO INSPECTIONS & APPRAISALS963507/10/2013
3,150.00 LJ TRUMBLE BUILDERS963607/10/2013
1,830.00 MOW MASTER963707/10/2013
3,480.00 ALL STAR SNOW REMOVAL963807/10/2013
1,936.00 SECOND CHANCE EMPLOYMENT963907/10/2013

840.00 NORTHWEST INITIATIVE964007/10/2013
1,560.00 MCKISSIC CONSTRUCTION964107/10/2013
1,565.00 INTEGRITY LAWN MAINTENANCE964207/10/2013

79.55 ROXANNE CASE964307/10/2013
260.48 DENNIS GRAHAM964407/10/2013
187.10 JOSEPH G BONSALL964507/10/2013
687.73 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT964607/25/2013
322.12 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT964707/25/2013
835.92 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT964807/25/2013
665.12 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT964907/25/2013
326.10 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT965007/25/2013
162.65 CONSUMERS ENERGY965107/25/2013
66.52 CONSUMERS ENERGY965207/25/2013

V11.17 CITY OF MASON965307/25/2013
13,645.00 MICHGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT965407/25/2013

833.20 CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL965507/25/2013
234.46 VERIZON WIRELESS965607/25/2013
278.15 AT & T965707/25/2013
49.60 GRANGER LANDSCAPE SUPPLY965807/25/2013

1,676.56 GRANGER CONTAINER SERVICE965907/25/2013
627.36 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES966007/25/2013
197.86 TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES966107/25/2013
626.42 MID-MICHIGAN OVERHEAD DOOR966207/25/2013
66.95 COMCAST966307/25/2013

87,673.32 MICH STATE HOUSING DEV AUTHORITY966407/25/2013
81,456.71 MICH STATE HOUSING DEV AUTHORITY966507/25/2013
80,749.31 MICH STATE HOUSING DEV AUTHORITY966607/25/2013
7,530.00 TRITERRA966707/25/2013

610.20 COHL, STOKER & TOSKEY, P.C.966807/25/2013
4,755.59 INGHAM COUNTY HOUSING COMMISSION966907/25/2013

320.30 PURCHASE POWER967007/25/2013
2,134.95 RIZZI DESIGNS967107/25/2013



CHECK REGISTER FOR INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK 2/2Page: 08/14/2013 02:15 PM
User: JEFF
DB: Iclb

CHECK DATE FROM 07/01/2013 - 07/31/2013

AmountVendor NameCheckCheck Date

916.38 CITY PULSE967207/25/2013
500.00 SOUTH ST, LLC967307/25/2013

1,504.56 GREATER LANSING HOUSING COALITION967407/25/2013
600.00 MOLENAAR & ASSOCIATES, INC967507/25/2013

2,200.00 KEBS, INC.967607/25/2013
290.00 ESI ENERGY CONSULTANTS967707/25/2013
245.00 ETC967807/25/2013
750.00 PRESERVATION LANSING967907/25/2013
112.00 FIBERTEC ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES968007/25/2013
88.00 SCHAFER'S INC968107/25/2013
797.38 LANSING ICE & FUEL968207/25/2013
31.61 LAFONTAINE AUTOMOTIVE GROUP968307/25/2013

2,475.00 J & M HAULING968407/25/2013
238.31 VET'S ACE HARDWARE968507/25/2013
314.42 HAZEN LUMBER, INC.968607/25/2013
472.32 COMMERCIAL CLEANING968707/25/2013
617.28 BWB CLEANING968807/25/2013
200.00 GLASS BLOCK AND MORE968907/25/2013

3,000.00 PAUL DAVISON969007/25/2013
1,984.45 W.F. BOHNET ELECTRIC CO969107/25/2013
2,200.00 BROOKSIDE INTERIORS LLC969207/25/2013
3,278.00 ROYAL PAINT COMPANY969307/25/2013

494.50 KELLY CLEANING SERVICE969407/25/2013
507.00 MICHIGAN PLUMBING969507/25/2013
260.00 WES STEFFEN PLUMBING969607/25/2013

27,619.93 BERRY BUILDERS LLC969707/25/2013
26,640.50 CENTURY CONSTRUCTION969807/25/2013

670.00 SWAT ENVIRONMENTAL969907/25/2013
99.00 HOMES & LIFESTYLES MAGAZINE, INC.970007/25/2013

6,500.00 DICKINSON WRIGHT970107/25/2013
59,000.00 SC SERVICES ENVIRONMENTAL970207/25/2013

975.00 J & J HARDWOODS, INC.970307/25/2013
5,830.00 EDEN GLEN CONDO ASSOCIATION970407/25/2013
1,600.00 AMO INSPECTIONS & APPRAISALS970507/25/2013

64.32 BESCO WATER TREATMENT, INC.970607/25/2013
14,540.00 KWIK REPO INC970707/25/2013
10,451.54 INGHAM COUNTY TREASURER970807/25/2013
1,830.00 LJ TRUMBLE BUILDERS970907/25/2013
1,544.00 SECOND CHANCE EMPLOYMENT971007/25/2013

795.00 NORTHWEST INITIATIVE971107/25/2013
340.00 SASSY GRASS971207/25/2013

10,815.00 SCHUMACHER'S FOUR SEASONS971307/25/2013
1,770.00 MOW MASTER971407/25/2013
3,075.00 MCKISSIC CONSTRUCTION971507/25/2013
3,000.00 FRITZY'S LAWN & SNOW971607/25/2013

79.62 ROXANNE CASE971707/25/2013
343.00 LINDA SCHONBERG971807/25/2013
323.54 MELISSA LOTT971907/25/2013
189.84 DENNIS GRAHAM972007/25/2013

19,452.79 LANSING CITY TREASURER972107/25/2013
14,873.60 LANSING CITY TREASURER972207/25/2013
1,280.66 CITY OF EAST LANSING972307/25/2013
1,086.22 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LANSING972407/25/2013

572.50 DELHI TOWNSHIP972507/25/2013
6,374.00 NORSHORE BUILDING INC972607/29/2013

GEN TOTALS:

762,488.53 Total of 132 Disbursements:

11.17 Less 1 Void Checks:
762,499.70 Total of 133 Checks:



INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2013

Assets
Cash 132,980.16$
Accounts Receivable 120.00$
Land Contract Receivable 1,865,638.02$
Land Contract Interest Receivable 70,966.53$
Land Contract Escrow 30,577.31$
Notes Receivable 180,000.00$
Specific Tax Receivable 26,300.02$
Specific Tax Receivable - Prior Year 940.67$
OCOF Nonprofit Receivable 5,322.68$
Ingham County Receivable 3,824.50$
Lansing City Receivable - General 27,489.90$
CDBG Receivable 15,400.00$
NSP 3 Lansing City Receivable 10,032.40$
HOME Lansing City Receivable 135,977.55$
Inventory - NSP2 -$
Inventory 4,430,473.45$

Total Assets 6,936,043.19$

Liabilities
Accounts Payable -$
Notes Payable - PNC Bank 3,675,000.00$
Due to MSHDA - NSP 2 220,826.56$
Due to Ingham County 1,173,596.29$
Rental Deposit 12,782.00$
Good Faith Deposits 2,901.00$
Land Contract Escrow 20,109.55$
Deferred Revenue -$

Total Liabilities 5,105,215.40$

Retained Earnings 1,720,903.43$

Total Net Assets 109,924.36$


